
      
 

Session No. 3Session No. 3
FEBRUARY 1, 2024FEBRUARY 1, 2024

 April N.M. Baskin
Chair

Timothy J. Meyers
Majority Leader

John J. Mills
Minority Leader

Olivia M. Owens
Clerk of the Legislature

      

ROLL CALLROLL CALL
 

INVOCATION: Mr. BargnesiINVOCATION: Mr. Bargnesi
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mr. MeyersPLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mr. Meyers
 

TABLED ITEMSTABLED ITEMS
 

ITEMS FOR RECONSIDERATION FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGITEMS FOR RECONSIDERATION FROM PREVIOUS MEETING
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING:  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING:  Meeting No. 2Meeting No. 2
 

PUBLIC HEARINGPUBLIC HEARING
 

MISCELLANEOUS RESOLUTIONS:MISCELLANEOUS RESOLUTIONS:
 

 
JOHNSON & BASKIN  In Remembrance of Stephanie Barber Geter

 

 

 
BASKIN  In Remembrance of Mary J. Snell-Davis

 

 

 
MEYERS & GILMOUR  Honoring and Recognizing National Boy Scout Day

 

 

 
JOHNSON & BASKIN  Honoring and Celebrating African American History Month

 

 

 
BASKIN & JOHNSON  Honoring National Freedom Day

 

 

 
MILLS  Recognizing Saints Peter and Paul School During Catholic

Schools Week in Erie County 

 

 

 
MILLS  Recognizing St. Francis High School During Catholic Schools

Week in Erie County 

 

 

 
MILLS  Celebrating Elizabeth (Betty) Birch on Her 100th Birthday

 

 

 
TODARO  Recognizing St. Mary's High School During Catholic Schools

Week in Erie County 

 

 

 
TODARO  Recognizing St. John the Baptist School During Catholic

Schools Week in Erie County 

 

 

 
TODARO  Recognizing Our Lady of the Blessed Sacrament School

During Catholic Schools Week in Erie County

 

 

https://destinyhosted.com/eriecshareddocs/image/Meeting 2 from 2024 minutes.pdf


 
TODARO  Recognizing Boy Scout Troops in Erie County During Boy

Scouts Anniversary Week

 

 

 
GREENE  Recognizing Chrusciki Bakery on Paczki Day

 

 

 
GREENE  Honoring and Congratulating Detective Terrance Walsh on His

Retirement

 

 

 
GREENE  Recognizing Kim Cappozzolo and Catwalk Consignment

Boutique During National Secondhand Wardrobe Week

 

 

 
GREENE  Recognizing Dana Zuber and Plato's Closet During National

Secondhand Wardrobe Week

 

 

 
LORIGO  Recognizing St. Vincent de Paul Council No. 17883 for 2

Years of Service to the Western New York Community

 

 

 
LORIGO  Recognizing January 2024 as "National Learn A Snow Sport

Month"

 

 

 
LORIGO  Recognizing Spectrum Health and Human Services as the West

Seneca Chamber of Commerce 2024 Community Service
Organization of the Year

 

 

 
LORIGO  Recognizing Jennifer McAndrew as the West Seneca Chamber

of Commerce 2024 Citizen of the Year

 

 

 
LORIGO  Recognizing the Western New York Federal Credit Union as

the West Seneca Chamber of Commerce 2024 Chamber
Member of the Year

 

 

 
LORIGO  Recognizing Andrew Frelock as the West Seneca Chamber of

Commerce 2024 Gerald Hathaway Young Entrepreneur of the
Year

 

 

 
LORIGO  Recognizing Steppin' Out Dance Academy as the West Seneca

Chamber of Commerce 2024 Business of the Year

 

 

 
LORIGO  Recognizing Rosalia Carraba as West Seneca Chamber of

Commerce 2024 Educator of the Year

 

 

 
LORIGO  Recognizing Alan J. Kaplewicz for 40 Years of Service to the

Blossom Volunteer Fire Company

 

 

 
LORIGO  Recognizing Paul Derkovitz for 40 Years of Service to the

Blossom Volunteer Fire Company

 

 



      

LOCAL LAWS:LOCAL LAWS:
 

 
LL INTRO. 1-1
(2024)

 BASKIN & JOHNSON  Funding of Affordable Housing
Opportunities in Erie County 

 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS:COMMITTEE REPORTS:
 

 
Report No. 2  FINANCE & MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  

 

 

 
Report No. 2  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  

 

 

 
Report No. 2  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE  

 

 

 
Report No. 2  ENERGY & ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE  

 

 

 
Report No. 1  HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE  

 

 

 
Report No. 1  COMMUNITY ENRICHMENT COMMITTEE  

 

 

 
Report No. 1  SMALL BUSINESS COMMITTEE  

 

 

LEGISLATOR RESOLUTIONS:LEGISLATOR RESOLUTIONS:
 

 
INTRO. 3-1  MINORITY CAUCUS  Rescinding Changes to the

Management, Administration &
Regulation of Golf Leagues

 
 

 

COMMUNICATIONS DISCHARGED FROM COMMITTEE:COMMUNICATIONS DISCHARGED FROM COMMITTEE:
 

SUSPENSION OF THE RULES:SUSPENSION OF THE RULES:
 

 
COMM. 3D-7  DEP COMMISSIONER  Affordable Multi-Family Rental

Housing Projects Requesting EC
ARPA Funding

 
 

 

 
COMM. 3D-8  COUNTY ATTORNEY  Regulation of County Golf Courses  

 

 

 
COMM. 3E-14  BASKIN  Lease for Legislative Office Space  

 

 

 
COMM. 3D-9  COUNTY ATTORNEY  County Funding of Low-Income

Housing Projects
 

 

 

 
COMM. 3E-15  GILMOUR  Letter of Absence for Session No. 2  

 



 

 
COMM. 3E-16  BASKIN  Placeholder - Letter on Affordable

Housing
 

 

 

 
COMM. 3E-17  SHERIFF  Funding for Helicopter Deposit  

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS:COMMUNICATIONS FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS:
 

 
COMM. 3E-1  CHAIR BASKIN  Request of Postponement for Session

No. 2
 RFP

 

 
COMM. 3E-2  LEGISLATURE

CLERK
 Notice of Postponement - Session No.

2
 RFP

 

 
COMM. 3E-3  TODARO  School District Reimbursement  Health & 

Human Services
 

 
COMM. 3E-4  TODARO  School District Reimbursement  Health & 

Human Services
 

 
COMM. 3E-5  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 EC - On-Call Special Inspections &

Tests - Additional Funding
 Economic 

Development
 

 
COMM. 3E-6  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Bridge NY Project Agreements - 4

Bridge Replacement Projects
 Economic 

Development
 

 
COMM. 3E-7  COMPTROLLER  Jail Management 25 Year Pension

Retroactive Payment to NYS Pension
System

 Finance & 
Management

 

 
COMM. 3E-8  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Appointments to the Mental Hygiene

Community Services Board
 Health & 

Human Services
 

 
COMM. 3E-9  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Appointments to the Senior Services

Advisory Board
 Health & 

Human Services
 

 
COMM. 3E-10  SHERIFF  Buffalo Fatherhood Initiative Contract

Amendment
 Public Safety

 

 
COMM. 3E-11  SHERIFF  Renewal of Project Blue Contract  Public Safety
 

 
COMM. 3E-12  SHERIFF  Quote for Cell Repairs at the EC

Holding Center
 Public Safety

 

 
COMM. 3E-13  MILLS  Letter of Absence  RFP
 



      

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE DEPARTMENTS:COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE DEPARTMENTS:
 

 
COMM. 3D-1  DIRECTOR OF

BUDGET &
MANAGEMENT

 Budget Monitoring Report for
Period Ending November 2023

 Finance & 
Management

 

 
COMM. 3D-2  DIRECTOR OF

BUDGET &
MANAGEMENT

 Capital Projects Update  Finance & 
Management

 

 
COMM. 3D-3  COUNTY

ATTORNEY
 Local State of Emergency

Declaration, January 12, 2024
 R&F

 

 
COMM. 3D-4  COMMISSIONER

OF SOCIAL
SERVICES

 Compliance Report - Comm. 12E-
34

 Health & 
Human Services

 

 
COMM. 3D-5  COMMISSIONER

OF PUBLIC WORKS
 2023 GBNRTC Road Score Book  Economic 

Development
 

 
COMM. 3D-6  BOARD OF

ELECTIONS
COMMISSIONERS

 Acceptance of Grant Award -
Absentee Ballot Pre-Paid Postage

 Immediate
Consideration Requested

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PEOPLE AND OTHER AGENCIES:COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PEOPLE AND OTHER AGENCIES:
 

 
COMM. 3M-1  ASSIGNED

COUNSEL
PROGRAM

 Quarterly Report - 4th Quarter of
2023

 Finance & 
Management

 

 
COMM. 3M-2  ASSIGNED

COUNSEL
PROGRAM

 Financial Report & Meeting
Minutes

 Finance & 
Management

 

 
COMM. 3M-3  APPOINTEE  Appointment to the ECCSAB  Public Safety
 

 
COMM. 3M-4  COMMISSIONER

OF AGRICULTURE
& MARKETS

 Erie County Southwestern
Agricultural District No. 8
Districting Plan Approval

 Energy & 
Environment

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS:ANNOUNCEMENTS:
 

MEMORIAL RESOLUTIONS:MEMORIAL RESOLUTIONS:
 

ADJOURNMENT:ADJOURNMENT:
 

 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
JOHNSON & BASKIN  In Remembrance of Stephanie Barber Geter

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Stephanie Barber Geter







  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
BASKIN  In Remembrance of Mary J. Snell-Davis

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Mary J. Snell-Davis







  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
MEYERS & GILMOUR  Honoring and Recognizing National Boy Scout Day

A ttachmentsA ttachments
National Boy Scout Day





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
JOHNSON & BASKIN  Honoring and Celebrating African American History Month

A ttachmentsA ttachments
African American History Month







  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
BASKIN & JOHNSON  Honoring National Freedom Day

A ttachmentsA ttachments
National Freedom Day





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

MILLS  Recognizing Saints Peter and Paul School During Catholic
Schools Week in Erie County 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Saints Peter and Paul School





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

MILLS  Recognizing St. Francis High School During Catholic Schools
Week in Erie County 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
St. Francis High School





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
MILLS  Celebrating Elizabeth (Betty) Birch on Her 100th Birthday

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Elizabeth (Betty) Birch





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

TODARO  Recognizing St. Mary's High School During Catholic Schools
Week in Erie County 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
St. Maryâ€™s High School





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

TODARO  Recognizing St. John the Baptist School During Catholic
Schools Week in Erie County 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
St. John the Baptist School





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

TODARO  Recognizing Our Lady of the Blessed Sacrament School
During Catholic Schools Week in Erie County

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Our Lady of the Blessed Sacrament





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

TODARO  Recognizing Boy Scout Troops in Erie County During Boy
Scouts Anniversary Week

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Boy Scout Troops





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
GREENE  Recognizing Chrusciki Bakery on Paczki Day

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Chrusciki Bakery





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

GREENE  Honoring and Congratulating Detective Terrance Walsh on His
Retirement

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Detective Terrance Walsh





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

GREENE  Recognizing Kim Cappozzolo and Catwalk Consignment
Boutique During National Secondhand Wardrobe Week

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Catwalk Consignment Boutique





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

GREENE  Recognizing Dana Zuber and Plato's Closet During National
Secondhand Wardrobe Week

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Platoâ€™s Closet





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

LORIGO  Recognizing St. Vincent de Paul Council No. 17883 for 2
Years of Service to the Western New York Community

A ttachmentsA ttachments
St. Vincent de Paul Council No. 17883





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

LORIGO  Recognizing January 2024 as "National Learn A Snow Sport
Month"

A ttachmentsA ttachments
National Learn A Snow Sport Month





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

LORIGO  
Recognizing Spectrum Health and Human Services as the West
Seneca Chamber of Commerce 2024 Community Service
Organization of the Year

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Spectrum Health and Human Services





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

LORIGO  Recognizing Jennifer McAndrew as the West Seneca Chamber
of Commerce 2024 Citizen of the Year

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Jennifer McAndrew





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

LORIGO  
Recognizing the Western New York Federal Credit Union as
the West Seneca Chamber of Commerce 2024 Chamber
Member of the Year

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Western New York Federal Credit Union





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

LORIGO  
Recognizing Andrew Frelock as the West Seneca Chamber of
Commerce 2024 Gerald Hathaway Young Entrepreneur of the
Year

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Andrew Frelock





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

LORIGO  Recognizing Steppin' Out Dance Academy as the West Seneca
Chamber of Commerce 2024 Business of the Year

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Steppinâ€™ Out Dance Academy





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

LORIGO  Recognizing Rosalia Carraba as West Seneca Chamber of
Commerce 2024 Educator of the Year

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Rosalia Carraba





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

LORIGO  Recognizing Alan J. Kaplewicz for 40 Years of Service to the
Blossom Volunteer Fire Company

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Alan J. Kaplewicz





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

LORIGO  Recognizing Paul Derkovitz for 40 Years of Service to the
Blossom Volunteer Fire Company

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Paul Derkovitz





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
LL INTRO. 1-1
(2024)  BASKIN & JOHNSON  Funding of Affordable Housing Opportunities

in Erie County  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
LL INTRO. 1-1 (2024)



COUNTY OF ERIE 
 

LOCAL LAW INTRO. NO. 1-1-2024 
 

LOCAL LAW NO. ____-2024 
 
A Local Law Authorizing the Funding of Affordable Housing Opportunities in Erie County as a 
County Purpose 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. FINDINGS 

The Erie County Legislature recognizes, determines, and finds as follows: 

All residents of Erie County deserve safe housing at an affordable cost. Published guidelines by 
the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development provides that households where 
more than 30% of total household income is spent on housing is a generally accepted threshold for 
affordable housing1.   
 
United States Census Data available for the 2018-2022 five-year period identified more than 
49.5% of renters in Erie County are now spending more than 30% of their household income on 
housing cost.   
 
According to the annual Out of Reach report prepared by the National Low Income Housing 
Coalition, a renter in Erie County would need to make $20.56 an hour to afford a two-bedroom 
unit at fair market rents or, they would need work 56 hours per week at current minimum wage. 

There is now a housing crisis in Erie County, stemming from an alarming scarcity of affordable 
housing available to many Erie County residents. 
 
Pursuant to Article IX, Section 2(c)(ii) of the New York State Constitution and Municipal Home 
Rule Law Section 10(1)(ii)(a)(12), Erie County may exercise its broad police powers to provide 
comprehensive county housing programs2.  

Based upon the critical shortage of affordable housing confronting Erie County residents the Erie 
County Legislature finds that county affordable housing is a critical need of the residents of Erie 
County, and the funding of affordable housing programs and projects and funding of said programs 
and projects is necessary to protect the public health, safety and welfare.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
1 See https://www.huduser.gov/portal/pdredge/pdr-edge-featd-article-081417.html 
2 NYS A.G. Informal Opinion 92-4, dated February 6, 1992, Pg. 2 and Pg. 7 



SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS 
 
As used in this law, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated: 
 

a) Housing: shall be defined as and include all Housing Accommodations within Erie 
County 
 

b) Housing Accommodation: shall be defined as shall be defined as any building, 
structure, or portion thereof that is occupied, as or intended for occupancy as, a 
residence by one or more families and any vacant land that is offered for sale or lease 
for the construction thereon of any building, structure, or portion thereof intended to 
be so occupied. 

 

c) Affordable Housing: shall be generally defined as Housing on which the occupant is 
paying no more than 30 percent of gross income for housing costs, including utilities 
for persons or families deemed to be or eligible to be deemed to be of extremely low, 
very low, low or moderate income by any state or federal housing program. Nothing in 
the definition shall prevent the County from funding housing services either above or 
below this affordability level when such funding is in keeping with federal or state 
programs providing housing assistance or where any income restricted housing 
whether intended for rental or homeownership is subject to a regulatory agreement 
with a local, state, or federal governmental entity. 

SECTION 3. AUTHORIZATION TO CREATE AND MAINTAIN AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING AS AN ERIE COUNTY PURPOSE  

A. Pursuant to the authority granted to Erie County by the New York State Constitution 
Sections IX and Municipal Home Rule Law Section 10, and The Charter of Erie County, 
and otherwise, Erie County may enter into agreements to fund the development, 
maintenance, management, and provision of Affordable Housing within Erie County to the 
extent the Erie County Legislature appropriates funding for the same; and  

 
B. This Local Law and the designation set forth herein shall apply to all Affordable 
Housing initiatives within Erie County. 

 
SECTION 4.  SEVERABILITY 
 

If any clause, sentence, paragraph, section, subdivision or other part of this Local Law or 
its applications shall be adjudged by a Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, such order or judgment shall not affect, impair, or otherwise invalidate 
the remainder of this Local Law which shall remain in full force and effect except as 
limited by such order or judgment. 

 
 
 



SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE AND APPLICABILITY 
 

This Local Law shall be effective upon filing with the Office of the Secretary of State.  
 
Sponsors: 
April N.M. Baskin 
Howard J. Johnson, Jr.  
 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
Report No. 2  FINANCE & MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Report No. 2



 
 

January 30, 2024 FINANCE & MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
REPORT NO. 2 

 
ALL MEMBERS PRESENT, EXCEPT LEGISLATORS GILMOUR & MILLS. 
 
1. RESOLVED, the following items are hereby received and filed: 
 
a. COMM. 24E-23 (2023) 

COMPTROLLER: “Batavia Downs Gaming Advertising and Marketing” 
 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
b. COMM. 2D-2 (2024) 

DEPUTY COMPTROLLER OF AUDIT: “EC Comptroller's Office Audit of the Real Property 
Tax Services” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
3. COMM. 1D-1 (2024) AS AMENDED 
 DIRECTOR OF REAL PROPERTY TAX SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the Erie County Director of Real Property Tax Services has received 
applications for corrected tax billings and / or refunds for taxes previously paid in accordance 
with New York State Real Property Tax Law sections 554 and 556; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Director has investigated the validity of such applications (see attached 
listing). 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT  
 

RESOLVED, that petitions numbered 260001 through 260018, inclusive be hereby 
approved or denied based upon the recommendation of the Director of Real Property Tax Services 
and be charged back to the applicable towns and/or cities. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 260,001.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $192.48 
 S-B-L 274.00-2-23.2 Springville Boston  143889 CONCORD 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $192.48
 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 143889 CONCORD $192.48 

 Relevy School $192.48 143801 SPRING-
GRIFFITH 
 
 RPTL 550(3): Applied improvement to wrong parcel 
 Refund to be issued to Scott & Sharon Schelble 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 260,002.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $278.28 
 S-B-L 81.05-2-78 95 Oakgrove Dr 142201 WILLIAMSVILLE 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $278.28
 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 142201 WILLIAMSVILLE $278.28 
 Relevy School $278.28 142203 
WILLIAMSVILLE CENT 
 
 RPTL 55(2):  Failed to apply vet exemption 
 Refund to be issued to Gregory & Katherine Vanderhorst 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 260,003.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $417.41 
 S-B-L 41.06-2-51 55 Founders Lake C 142289 AMHERST 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $417.41
 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 142289 AMHERST $417.41 
 Relevy School $417.41 142203 
WILLIAMSVILLE CENT 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Failed to apply vet exemption 
 Refund to be issued to Christopher & Kori Cahill 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 260,004.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $74.00 
 S-B-L 250.13-3-5.1 9680 Quebec St 144489 EVANS 



 
 

 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $74.00
 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 44069  ERIE CO SEW DIST 2                 $74.00 
 Charge To : 144489 EVANS $0.00 
 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Incorrect footage used to calculate EC Sewer 
 Refund to be issued to Arthur Felski 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2022 Petition No. 260,005.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $74.00 
 S-B-L 250.13-3-5.1 9680 Quebec St 144489 EVANS 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $74.00
 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 44069  ERIE CO SEW DIST 2                 $74.00 
 Charge To : 144489 EVANS $0.00 
 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Incorrect footage used to calculate EC Sewer 
 Refund to be issued to Arthur Felski 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2021 Petition No. 260,006.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $74.00 
 S-B-L 250.13-3-5.1 9680 Quebec St 144489 EVANS 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $74.00
 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 44069  ERIE CO SEW DIST 2                 $74.00 
 Charge To : 144489 EVANS $0.00 
 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Incorrect footage used to calculate EC Sewers 
 Refund to be issued to Arthur Felski 

 
 
 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 260,007.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $895.80 
 S-B-L 24.13-2-23 1818 Bedell Rd 144600 GRAND ISLAND 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $895.80
 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 0  Sidewalk                            $0.00 
 Charge To : 144600 GRAND ISLAND $895.80 
 Relevy School $895.80 144601 GRND ISLN 
CENTRAL 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Failed to apply exemptions 
 Refund to be issued to Eilene Gebrian 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 260,008.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel $150.00 
 S-B-L 171.11-1-25 Hidden Hollow Rd 144889 HAMBURG 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $150.00
 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 48116  ECSD 3 CH2                        $150.00 
 Charge To : 144889 HAMBURG $0.00 
 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Applied EC Sewer in error 
 New tax bill to be issued. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2022 Petition No. 260,009.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel $142.50 
 S-B-L 171.11-1-25 Hidden Hollow Dr 144889 HAMBURG 
 



 
 

 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $142.50
 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 48116  ECSD 3 CH2                        $142.50 
 Charge To : 144889 HAMBURG $0.00 
 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Applied EC Sewer in error 
 New tax bill to be issued 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2021 Petition No. 260,010.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel $135.00 
 S-B-L 171.11-1-25 Hidden Hollow Rd 144889 HAMBURG 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $135.00
 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 48116  ECSD 3 CH2                        $135.00 
 Charge To : 144889 HAMBURG $0.00 
 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Applied EC Sewer in error 
 New tax bill to be issued. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 260,011.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel $150.00 
 S-B-L 171.11-1-26 Hidden Hollow Rd 144889 HAMBURG 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $150.00
 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 48116  ECSD 3 CH2                        $150.00 
 Charge To : 144889 HAMBURG $0.00 
 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Applied EC Sewer in error. 
 New tax bill to be issued. 
 

 
 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2022 Petition No. 260,012.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel $142.50 
 S-B-L 171.11-1-26 Hidden Hollow Rd 144889 HAMBURG 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $142.50
 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 48116  ECSD 3 CH2                        $142.50 
 Charge To : 144889 HAMBURG $0.00 
 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Applied EC Sewer in error 
 New tax bill to be issued. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2021 Petition No. 260,013.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel $135.00 
 S-B-L 171.11-1-26 Hidden Hollow Rd 144889 HAMBURG 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $135.00
 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 48116  ECSD 3 CH2                        $135.00 
 Charge To : 144889 HAMBURG $0.00 
 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Applied EC Sewer in error 
 New tax bill to be issued. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 260,014.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $176.44 
 S-B-L 126.12-5-21 22 Worthington Ln 145289 LANCASTER 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 



 
 

 Acct. No. 132 $176.44
 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 145289 LANCASTER $176.44 
 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Failed to remove 1 refuse unit 
 Refund to be issued to Robert Alessi 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2024 Petition No. 260,015.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel $206.58 
 S-B-L 124.61-3-51.1 255 Aurora Ave 146800 WEST SENECA 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $206.58
 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 146800 WEST SENECA $206.58 
 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Leak allowance granted 
 New tax bill to be issued. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 260,016.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel $806.01 
 S-B-L 144.20-2-20 159 Fawn Trl 146800 WEST SENECA 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $806.01
 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 146800 WEST SENECA $806.01 
 Relevy School $806.01 146801 WEST 
SENECA CENT 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Failed to apply senior exemption 
 New tax bill to be issued. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2024 Petition No. 260,017.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel $516.88 

 S-B-L 143.19-2-4 24 Allendale Rd 146800 WEST SENECA 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $446.18 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $70.70
 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 146800 WEST SENECA $70.70 
 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Failed to apply Aged exemption 
 New tax bill to be issued. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 260,018.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel $153.74 
 S-B-L 143.19-2-4 24 Allendale Rd 146800 WEST SENECA 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $153.74
 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 146800 WEST SENECA $153.74 
 Relevy School $153.74 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Failed to apply Aged exemption 
 New tax bill to be issued. 
 

and be it further 
  

 RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be forwarded to the Director of Real 
Property Tax Services. 
(3-0) 
 
 

TIMOTHY J. MEYERS 
CHAIR 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
Report No. 2  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Report No. 2



 
 

January 30, 2024 PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
REPORT NO. 2 

 
ALL MEMBERS PRESENT, EXCEPT LEGISLATOR GILMOUR. 
  
1. RESOLVED, the following items are hereby received and filed: 
 
a. COMM. 2E-2 (2024) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “Appointment of Interim Commissioner – Central Police Services” 
 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
b. COMM. 2E-8 (2024) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “Appointment to the EC Department of Central Police Services Board 
of Trustees” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
c. COMM. 2E-14 (2024) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “EC Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board” 
 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 
2. COMM. 2E-3 (2024) AS AMENDED 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, as part of the ongoing evaluation and reorganization of various divisions within the 
Erie County Sheriff’s Office, it has been determined that certain changes need to be made to the 
Correctional Health Division; and  
  

WHEREAS, in order to provide better medical care and better clinical outcomes for all 
incarcerated individuals at both facilities within the ECSO, it has been determined that the position of 
Clinical Site Administrator-Correctional Health should be created for each facility; and 
  

WHEREAS, the creation on one Clinical Site Administrator for each facility would provide 
necessary and important supervisory medical care at each facility; and  
  

WHEREAS, the current structure of the Correctional Health Division lacks the optimal level of 
supervisory medical care at each facility; and  
  

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the simple restructuring of two positions within the 
division and at no additional cost to the 2024 budget would address this need for supervisory medical care.     

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
 

 

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby authorize the Erie County Sheriff’s 
Office to delete the titles of Director of Nursing (Position # 51011379) and Assistant Director of Nursing 
(Position # 51013378) and create two new titles of Clinical Site Administrator – Correctional Health; and 
be it further   
 
 RESOLVED, that the new pay scale for the new title of Clinical Site Administrator – 
Correctional Health shall be the average of the difference between the Director of Nursing (JG21) and the 
Assistant Director of Nursing (JG 20), Inc, and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the following two job groups will be deleted: 
     
    Job Group 20 Step 5 for $107,143 
    Job Group 21 Step 5 for $128,257 
and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that authorization is granted to the ECSO to work in conjunction with the Erie 
County Personnel Department to create the following new pay scale within the Teamsters Supervisors 
Bargaining Unit for non-sworn personnel for the two new titles of Clinical Site Administrator-Correctional 
Health: 
 

Job Group 30 Step 5 for $117,700 
and be it further  
  
 RESOLVED, that these changes are effective on the first day of the first pay period following 
passage of this resolution; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution shall be forwarded to the Erie County 
Executive, the Division of Budget and Management, the Erie County Personnel Department, the Erie 
County Comptroller and the Erie County Sheriff.  
(4-0) 
 
 

HOWARD J. JOHNSON, JR. 
CHAIR 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
Report No. 2  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Report No. 2



 
 

January 30, 2024 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
REPORT NO. 2 

 
ALL MEMBERS PRESENT, EXCEPT LEGISLATORS GILMOUR & MILLS. 
CHAIR BASKIN PRESENT AS EX-OFFICIO MEMBER. 
 
1. COMM. 2E-16 (2024) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, community solar programs offer subscribers solar credits which provide a discount 
to an electric utility bill; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County has 168 electric utility accounts that could be enrolled into a Community 

Solar program; and 
 
WHEREAS, enrolling these accounts is projected to save the County approximately $75,000 in 

electric utility expenses; and 
 
WHEREAS, Project Economics, d/b/a PowerMarket, a New York company that provides 

services to the community solar industry, was selected from a competitive solicitation to provide 
Community Solar services; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County operates a utility aggregate involving other municipalities who can also 
work with PowerMarket to enroll into Community Solar for which this competitive solicitation can satisfy 
procurement requirements; and  
 

WHEREAS, the County will receive a small fee for each aggregate account that gets enrolled.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 
 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the Erie County Department of 
Public Works to enroll electric accounts for the purpose of reducing utility expenses; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that the County will accept all related grants, awards, fees and funds related to the 

enrollment of utility accounts into Community Solar and authorizes the Department of Budget and 
Management to add funds to the budget in A.20007 – Energy Conservation Implementation Measures, 
Fund 410, Funds Center 122; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the Legislature forward three (3) certified copies of this 

Resolution to the Department of Public Works, and also one copy each to the, Office of the County 
Executive, the Division of Budget and Management, and the Office of the Comptroller. 
(3-0) Chair Baskin not present for vote. 
 

2. COMM.2E-17 (2024)  
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, the existing 29 year old roof system and two air-handling units (AHU) at SUNY 
Erie Community College North Campus Bell Sports Center  have far exceeded their useful lives and to 
reduce maintenance costs associated with temporary “stop-gap” measures to keep the building weather-
tight and functioning, a full roof and AHU replacement are warranted; and 

 
WHEREAS, Bell & Spina Architects Planners P.C. previously completed professional design and 

construction administration services for Erie Community College North Campus 2017 Spring Student 
Center Roof Replacement project (COMM. 20E-10  on December 7, 2017), and an Agreement 
Amendment was approved for design services for roof repairs, recoating and replacement work at Bell 
Sports Center (COMM. 20E-6 on November 15, 2018); and 

 
WHEREAS, bids for roof replacement scope were received by DPW on December 18, 2020 but 

due to funding restrictions from SUNY resulting from the COVID pandemic, the project could not 
proceed; and 

 
WHEREAS, the additional A/E design fee is for increased design costs from the previous 

agreements as referenced above as well as additional design services to replace the two existing AHU’s 
and associated mechanical penthouses, re-bidding and construction administration services to complete the 
entire project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County will receive 50% reimbursement from New York State for this project; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, the County Executive is requesting authorization to issue a Second Agreement 

Amendment to Bell & Spina Architects Planners P.C. to increase their A/E base fee by a total amount not 
to exceed $121,660 for the SUNY Erie Community College North Campus Bell Sports Center Roof 
Repairs, Recoating and Roof and AHU Replacement project. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to issue a 

Second Agreement Amendment to Bell & Spina Architects Planners P.C. to to increase their A/E base fee 
and design contingency for the SUNY Erie Community College North Campus Bell Sports Center Roof 
Repairs, Recoating and Roof and AHU Replacement project; and be it further 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby give to Comptroller’s Office to make payment for all 
the above from the approved Capital Budgets, Fund 480, Funds Center 122, as follows: 

 
E.17002 2017 ECC  Roof Replacement, Exterior Waterproofing and  

Masonry Collegewide       $     41,498.25 
E.19001 2019 Collegewide Improvements and Renovations    $     80,161.75 
For a Total Amount Not to Exceed       $   121,660.00 

 
and be it further 

 
 RESOLVED, that two certified copies of this resolution be sent to the Department of Public 
Works, Commissioner’s Office, and one copy each to the Office of the County Executive, the Division of 
Budget and Management, and the Office of the Comptroller, and one copy to Erie Community College of 
the Chief Administrative and Financial Officer. 
(3-0) Chair Baskin not present for vote. 
 
3. COMM. 2E-18 (2024) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, consistent with Erie County’s Commitment to Paris goals, the County encourages 
the development of solar facilities which reduce dependence upon fossil fuels and further climate goals to 
mitigate global warming; and   

 
WHEREAS, Project Owner (NYSOLAR06 LLC), has submitted a Notice of Intent to the Taxing 

Jurisdictions that it plans to build and operate a Solar Energy System as defined in New York Real 
Property Tax Law (“RPTL”) Section 487(1)(b) (the “Project”) with an expected nameplate capacity 
(“Capacity”) of approximately 3.45 Megawatts AC on one parcel totaling approximately 35.6 acres of land 
located within the Town of Grand Island, identified as 2595 Whitehaven Road, SBL: 36.00-1-28; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has not opted out of RPTL § 487; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to RPTL § 487(9)(a) the County has indicated their intent to require a 
Payment in Lieu of Taxes Agreement (“PILOT”) with the Project Owner, under which the Project Owner 
will be required to make annual payments to the Taxing Jurisdictions for each year during the term of this 
Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Project Owner has submitted or will submit to the Assessor of the Town of 
Grand Island an Application for Tax Exemption of Solar or Wind Energy Systems or Farm Waste Energy 
Systems (“Form RP-487”); and  
  

WHEREAS, the Real Property not part of the Project will be assessed for any statutory real 
property taxes levied by the Taxing Jurisdictions;  

WHEREAS, Project parcel identification numbers and/or addresses may be amended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to execute 
a Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) Agreement with NYSOLAR06 LLC, and any other associated legal 
entities necessary to complete this PILOT Agreement, pertaining to the 35.6 acre parcel located at 2595 
Whitehaven Road, SBL: 36.00-1-28; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that said Agreement shall include an annual approximate PILOT payment to Erie 
County in the amount $7,475.00, subject to annual escalation of 2%; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that said Agreement shall include an estimated annual PILOT based on the amount 

of taxes due as set forth on Schedule A attached hereto; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, authorization is hereby given to the Director of Real Property Tax Services to 

amend said Agreement based on revisions to parcel identification numbers and/or addresses in a manner 
consistent with the description of land, set forth in the P.I.L.O.T. Agreement; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution shall be forwarded to the Office of the 
County Executive, the Division of Budget and Management, the Office of the Comptroller, the 
Department of Real Property Tax Services, the Department of Law, and the Department of Environment 
and Planning. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Schedule A 
 

PILOT Schedule 
 
Note: The following schedule is for illustrative purposes only. The PILOT will commence in accordance 
with Section 2(b) of this Agreement and the payment schedule is subject to adjustment if the capacity of 
the Project changes. 
 

Agreement Year Year Payment Amount 
Erie County 

Payment 
Amount 
Town 

Payment 
Amount 
School 
District 

Payment 
Amount  

Total 

1 2024 $7,475.00 $7,475.00 $7,475.00 $22,425.00 
2 2025 $7,624.50 $7,624.50 $7,624.50 $22,873.50 
3 2026 $7,776.99 $7,776.99 $7,776.99 $23,330.97 
4 2027 $7,932.53 $7,932.53 $7,932.53 $23,797.59 
5 2028 $8,091.18 $8,091.18 $8,091.18 $24,273.54 
6 2029 $8,253.00 $8,253.00 $8,253.00 $24,759.00 
7 2030 $8,418.06 $8,418.06 $8,418.06 $25,254.19 
8 2031 $8,586.43 $8,586.43 $8,586.43 $25,759.28 
9 2032 $8,758.15 $8,758.15 $8,758.15 $26,274.46 
10 2033 $8,933.32 $8,933.32 $8,933.32 $26,799.95 
11 2034 $9,111.98 $9,111.98 $9,111.98 $27,335.95 
12 2035 $9,294.22 $9,294.22 $9,294.22 $27,882.67 
13 2036 $9,480.11 $9,480.11 $9,480.11 $28,440.32 
14 2037 $9,669.71 $9,669.71 $9,669.71 $29,009.13 
15 2038 $9,863.10 $9,863.10 $9,863.10 $29,589.31 

(3-0) Chair Baskin not present for vote. 
 
4. COMM. 2E-20 (2024) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
 WHEREAS, Erie County, through the Department of Environment and Planning, serves as the 
administrative agent for the Erie County/Town of West Seneca Community Development Consortium and 
Erie County/Town of West Seneca/Town of Hamburg HOME Investment Partnership Consortium; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a major responsibility of the Department as the administrative agent, is the 
preparation of the annual program application materials, and submittal of same to the federal Department 
of Housing and Urban Development; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Erie County Community Development Block Grant Consortium and HOME 
Consortium approved the 2024 Annual Action Plan at their session held on January 25, 2024. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive, on behalf 
of the Erie County Community Development Consortium and Town of Hamburg/Erie County HOME 
Consortium, to submit this resolution to the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) as supportive material to the 2024 Annual Action Plan for the Community Development Block 
Grant, Emergency Solutions, and HOME Investment Partnership Programs having estimated dollar 
amounts as indicated: 
 
1.  Erie County Consortium Community Development Program:      $3,085,828 
2.  Emergency Solutions Program:                                                      $   244,521 
3.  HOME Investment Partnership Program:                                       $1,117,772 
4.  Town of Hamburg Community Development Program:                $   435,000 
 
and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to the County Executive to, on behalf of the Erie 
County Community Development Consortium and Town of Hamburg/Erie County HOME Consortium to 
submit and execute any and all applications and agreements with HUD, local governments, property 
owners receiving housing assistance, non-profit, and for-profit agencies, which are necessary to implement 
the above programs with the exception that any proposed agreement that transfers all or a portion of the 
administrative functions of the program from Erie County to a sub-recipient or contractual agency shall 
require approval from the Erie County Community Development Consortium and the Erie County 
Legislature; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to the Commissioner of the Department of 
Environment and Planning to execute any and all HOME Agreements with property owners participating 
in County housing programs assisted with federal HOME Investment Partnership funds; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to the Commissioner of the Department of 
Environment and Planning to execute any and all discharges of Erie County Note and Mortgages and/or 
Lien documents associated with any and all Erie County Housing Programs funded through the federal 
Community Development Block Grant and/or HOME Investment Partnership Programs; and be it further 
  

RESOLVED, that copies of this resolution shall be forwarded to the Office of the County 
Executive, the Division of Budget and Management, the Office of the Comptroller, the Department of 
Law, and the Department of Environment and Planning. 
(3-0) Chair Baskin not present for vote. 
 

 
HOWARD J. JOHNSON, JR. 

CHAIR 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
Report No. 2  ENERGY & ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Report No. 2



 
 

January 30, 2024 ENERGY & ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
REPORT NO. 2 

 
ALL MEMBERS PRESENT, EXCEPT LEGISLATOR MILLS. 
CHAIR BASKIN PRESENT AS EX-OFFICIO MEMBER. 
 
1. RESOLVED, the following items are hereby received and filed: 
 
a. COMM. 2E-21 (2024) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “ECSD Nos. 2, 3, 6 & 8 - Construction Inspection Term Contract 
Agreement” 
(Chair’s Ruling) 

 
b. COMM. 2E-25 (2024) 

LORIGO: “Objection to New Rules Governing Golf Leagues at County Golf Courses” 
 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
2. COMM. 2E-13 (2024)   
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
 RESOLVED, the Erie County Legislature does hereby confirm the appointment of the 
following individual to the Erie County Sewer District Boards of Managers, Sewer District No. 2: 
 

Ray Ashton, Supervisor 
Town of Evans 
8787 Erie Road 

Angola, NY 14006 
(5-0) 
 
3. COMM. 2E-19 (2024)   
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, climate change is a real and increasingly urgent threat that demands action at every 
level of government; and 

 
WHEREAS, actions taken to address climate change provide multiple benefits through energy 

and cost savings, improved air quality and public health, local jobs creation, resource conservation, 
climate resilience, and enhanced equity; and 

 
WHEREAS, in 2014 the Erie County Legislature resolved to become a Climate Smart 

Community, and to set goals and implement sustainability actions (COMM. 12E-5, 2014); and 
 

WHEREAS, in 2019 the Erie County Legislature adopted the Climate Action and Sustainability Plan for 
internal operations (COMM. 3E-4, 2019); and 

 
WHEREAS, in 2020 the Erie County Legislature resolved to accept a grant from the NYSDEC Climate 

Smart Communities program (COMM. 11E-17, 2020), which funded coordination of the Community Climate 
Action Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, with the authority from Executive Order 20, the Erie County Environment Management 
Council convened a Community Climate Change Task Force made up of a broad group of experts and 
stakeholders which advised the County on the development of an equity-centered Community Climate Action 
Plan (CCAP); and   
 

WHEREAS, New York State government and the federal government have created unprecedented grant 
funding opportunities for climate action, and this plan and its adoption will make the County more competitive 
and better able to secure funding for local projects; and 
 

WHEREAS, by adopting the CCAP, the Legislature will reinforce the County’s commitment to assertive 
leadership to address the climate crisis and protect the community. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
 RESOLVED, that Erie County Legislature hereby adopts the Community Climate Action Plan, including 
the goals, strategies and actions contained therein; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that Erie County will continue to work to reduce climate pollution and to increase the 
health and resilience of social, natural, and built resources to withstand the impacts of climate change; and be it 
further 
  
 RESOLVED, that the Department of Environment and Planning shall provide a public update on 
progress on the CCAP actions annually with a report sent to the Legislature; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution shall be furnished to the Office of the County 
Executive, the Division of Budget and Management, the Department of Law, the Office of the Comptroller, and 
the Department of Environment and Planning. 
(5-0) 
 
 

TIMOTHY J. MEYERS 
CHAIR 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
Report No. 1  HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Report No. 1



 
 

January 30, 2024 HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 
COMMITTEE 
REPORT NO. 1 

 
ALL MEMBERS PRESENT, EXCEPT CHAIR GILMOUR 
CHAIR BASKIN PRESENT AS EX-OFFICIO MEMBER. 
 
1. RESOLVED, the following items are hereby received and filed: 
 
a. COMM. 24M-5 (2023) 

HOMELESS ALLIANCE OF WNY: “Public Comment Supporting Language Access Bill” 
(Acting Chair’s Ruling) 

 
b. COMM. 24M-6 (2023) 

NEW YORK IMMIGRATION COALITION: “Testimony from the New York Immigration 
Coalition on LL Intro. 9-1 (2023)” 
(Acting Chair’s Ruling) 

 
c. COMM. 2E-12 (2024) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “Appointment to the Board of Health” 
 (Acting Chair’s Ruling) 
 
2. COMM. 2E-15 (2023) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, the National Council on Aging’s (NCOA) Benefit Enrollment Center (BEC) 
initiative is a national program that supports efforts by community-based organizations and agencies to 
assist Medicare recipients in applying for, enrolling and maintaining benefits in financial assistance 
programs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Department of Senior Services submitted a competitive grant application to 

NCOA for BEC Grant funding to increase current outreach and enrollment assistance to hard-to-reach Erie 
County Medicare Beneficiaries, including rural, Hispanic, and refugee communities in the County of Erie; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, NCOA awarded the Department of Senior Services $125,000 of BEC grant funds 

for the period January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2025; and 
 
WHEREAS, no additional County funds are required, as the grant is 100% funded by the grantor.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 

RESOLVED, the County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to enter into a 
contract with NCOA to accept the $125,000 of BEC funding for the period January 1, 2024 to December 
31, 2025; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, the authorization is hereby given to enter into contracts and amendments with the 

NCOA to effectuate changes to funding levels or grant period; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that the Benefit Enrollment Center (163BEC2425) grant be established in grant 

fund 281 fund center 1632010 as follows: 
 

REVENUES      BUDGET  
Account  Description   
414000  Federal Revenue    $125,000 

 
APPROPRIATIONS     BUDGET 
Account  Description 
505000  Office Supplies    $    1,750  
510000  Local Mileage          2,500 
510100  Out of Area Travel                2,500 
516020  Pro Ser Cent and Fees            42,500 
530000  Other Expenses                       750 
561410  Lab & Technical Equipment                2,000 
916390  ID Senior Services Grant           70,000 
980000  ID DISS Services    $    2,000 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $125,000 
and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given for the Division of Budget and Management to 
adjust the budget as required to comply with the NCOA approved funding levels; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to apply any unused balance from one grant 

program to the same grant program of a subsequent year with the approval of the grantor; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to the Director of Budget and Management to 
adjust grant appropriations and revenues in accordance with the final grantor funding levels or grantor 
authorized changes to award amounts, provided there are no changes to authorized personnel levels and 
county share amounts; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to the County Executive to amend contracts as 

necessary to implement any no-cost extension that may be permitted by the grantor; and be it further 
 
  



 
 

RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be forwarded to the County Executive Office, 
Division of Budget and Management, Comptroller’s Office, and the Department of Senior Services. 
(5-0) 
 
 

HOWARD J. JOHNSON, JR. 
ACTING CHAIR 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
Report No. 1  COMMUNITY ENRICHMENT COMMITTEE  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Report No. 1



January 30, 2024 COMMUNITY ENRICHMENT COMMITTEE 
REPORT NO. 1 

 
ALL MEMBERS PRESENT, EXCEPT LEGISLATORS GILMOUR & MILLS. 
CHAIR BASKIN PRESENT AS EX-OFFICIO MEMBER. 
 
1. RESOLVED, the following items are hereby received and filed: 
 
a. COMM. 12M-2 (2023) 

VBN PRESIDENT & CEO: “2023 First Quarter Reports & Financial Statements for VBN & 
BNCC” 
(Acting Chair’s Ruling) 

 
b. COMM. 12M-3 (2023) 
 CHAIR, SUNY ERIE BOARD OF TRUSTEES: “2023-2024 SUNY Erie Operating Budget” 
 (Acting Chair’s Ruling) 
 
c. COMM. 2E-10 (2024) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “Appointments to the EC Arts & Cultural Advisory Board” 
 (Acting Chair’s Ruling) 
 
d. COMM. 2E-11 (2024) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “Appointments to the VBN & BNCC Board of Directors” 

(Acting Chair’s Ruling) 
 
2. COMM. 2E-9 (2024) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
 RESOLVED, the Erie County Legislature does hereby confirm the following individuals for re-
appointment to the Buffalo and Erie County Public Library Board of Directors with a term expiration of 
December 31, 2028: 
 

Christine Pedigo Bartholomew   John Craik 
               709 O’Brian Hall                            384 Voorhees Avenue 
             Buffalo, NY 14260   Buffalo, NY 14216 

(4-0) 
 
 

HOWARD J. JOHNSON, JR. 
ACTING CHAIR 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
Report No. 1  SMALL BUSINESS COMMITTEE  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Report No. 1



 
 

January 30, 2024 SMALL BUSINESS COMMITTEE 
REPORT NO. 1 

 
ALL MEMBERS PRESENT, EXCEPT LEGISLATOR MILLS. 
CHAIR BASKIN PRESENT AS EX-OFFICIO MEMBER. 

 
1. RESOLVED, all items are hereby tabled. 

(Chair’s Ruling) 
 

JEANNE M. VINAL 
CHAIR  



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

INTRO. 3-1  MINORITY CAUCUS  Rescinding Changes to the Management,
Administration & Regulation of Golf Leagues  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24INTRO. 3-1



INTRO. 3-1 
Page 1 of 2



INTRO. 3-1 
Page 2 of 2



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 3D-7  DEP COMMISSIONER  Affordable Multi-Family Rental Housing
Projects Requesting EC ARPA Funding  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3D-7



COUNTY OF ERIE 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND PLANNING 

DANIEL R. CASTLE, AICP   THOMAS E. BAINES, ESQ 

COMMISSIONER   DEPUTY COMMISSIONER 

RATH BUILDING · 95  FRANKLIN STREET · BUFFALO, N.Y.  · 14202 · (716) 858-8390  · WWW.ERIE.GOV 

January 30, 2024 
Hon. April N.M. Baskin 
Chairwoman, Erie County Legislature 
2495 Main Street, Suite 450 
Buffalo, New York 14214 

Re: Affordable Multi-Family Rental Housing Projects Requesting Erie County ARPA Funding 

Dear Chairwoman Baskin,  

Please accept this correspondence as an update on the recent RFP for Affordable Multi-Family Rental 
Housing Developers requesting a portion of the $6.5M funding from Erie County’s American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 
monies. This RFP was issued by the Erie County Department of Environment and Planning (DEP) on August 11, 2023, 
and closed on December 31, 2023.   We had expected to receive approximately 10-12 applications. 

Twenty-six (26) applications were ultimately received seeking a total of $23,198,858.  Applications were 
dispersed throughout the county as follows: Lackawanna 1; Amherst 1; Kenmore 1; Cheektowaga 1; Hamburg 1; 
Williamsville 1; Town Tonawanda 1; City of Buffalo 19.     

Proposals submitted through the RFP seek development of a total of 1,989 affordable units (for those with 
incomes at or below 80% Area Median Income). The total development cost of all twenty-six projects is estimated at 
$1.02 billion.   Clearly, the interest from developers has exceeded our expectations. 

DEP is currently reviewing proposals for completeness, timeliness, and eligibility within ARPA funding 
requirements.  DEP intends to have funding recommendations and resolution for County Legislature action in March.  

Please do not hesitate to reach out to my office with any questions. You may contact Deputy Commissioner 
Thomas Baines at Thomas.Baines@erie.gov or 716-858-6043.  

 Very truly yours, 

Daniel R. Castle, AICP 
Commissioner  

DC/nb 
Cc: Thomas E. Baines, Esq, Deputy Commissioner 

Jordan Zyglis, Legislative Liaison   

SUSPENSION

COMM. 3D-7 
Page 1 of 1

mailto:Thomas.Baines@erie.gov


  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 3D-8  COUNTY ATTORNEY  Regulation of County Golf Courses  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3D-8



SUSPENSION

COMM. 3D-8 
Page 1 of 3



SUSPENSION

COMM. 3D-8 
Page 2 of 3



SUSPENSION

COMM. 3D-8 
Page 3 of 3



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 3E-14  BASKIN  Lease for Legislative Office Space  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3E-14



SUSPENSION

COMM. 3E-14 
Page 1 of 4



SUSPENSION

COMM. 3E-14 
Page 2 of 4



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

1/18/2024

License # 1009544

(716) 636-5826 5826 (716) 849-8291

33600

Tri-Main Development LLC
2495 Main St
Buffalo, NY 14214

42404

A 1,000,000

X X TB5-Z11-C0L61H-023 10/17/2023 10/17/2024 1,000,000
EBL Coverage 20,000

1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

EBL AGGREGATE 2,000,000
1,000,000A

X AS5-Z11-C0L61H-033 10/17/2023 10/17/2024

10,000,000B
X TH7-Z11-C0L61H-042 10/17/2023 10/17/2024

0 10,000,000

Additional Insured and Waiver of Subrogation coverage shown above and marked with an X.  Terms set forth as evidenced by the attached endorsement(s) 
identified on the ACORD 101. The following are additional insureds for the location identified in the Contract Documents: The Certificate Holder and its 
affiliates, the Owner, and all other parties required to be named as additional insureds under the Contract Documents, including but not limited to the Prime 
Contract and/or any Subcontracts or lending agreements/requirements.

In case Umbrella/Excess liability suffices any other coverage limits - 'Umbrella/Excess Follows Form of underlying coverage'.

County of Erie
92 Franklin Street, 4th Fl.
Buffalo, NY 14202

TRI-DEV-01 JDIMINUCO

Lawley Real Estate Insurance Services
361 Delaware Avenue
Buffalo, NY 14202

Deborah Bolt

dbolt@lawleyinsurance.com

LM Insurance Corp
Liberty Insurance Corporation

Aggregate

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

SUSPENSION

COMM. 3E-14 
Page 3 of 4



FORM NUMBER:

EFFECTIVE DATE:

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE

FORM TITLE:

Page           of

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

ACORD 101 (2008/01)

AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:
LOC #:

AGENCY NAMED INSURED

POLICY NUMBER

CARRIER NAIC CODE

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

Lawley Real Estate Insurance Services

TRI-DEV-01

SEE PAGE 1

1

SEE PAGE 1

ACORD 25 Certificate of Liability Insurance

License # 1009544

0

SEE P 1

Tri-Main Development LLC
2495 Main St
Buffalo, NY 14214

SEE PAGE 1

JDIMINUCO

1

When required by written contract the following endorsements apply:
General Liability:

LC 04 59 - Comml General Liability Enhancement for Real Estate & Property Managers - includes Waiver of Subrogation
LC 20 65 - Comml General Liability Additional Insured Enhancement for Real Estate & Prop Mgrs - includes blanket additional 
insured and primary/noncontributory

Automobile:

AC8444 - NY Auto Enhancement Endorsement - Includes Waiver of Subrogation

Umbrella:

LCU 00 01 - Blanket Additonal Insured &  Primary Non Contributory & Waiver of Subrogation

SUSPENSION

COMM. 3E-14 
Page 4 of 4



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 3D-9  COUNTY ATTORNEY  County Funding of Low-Income Housing
Projects  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3D-9



1 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  File 
From: Richard E. Stanton, Assistant County Attorney 
Dated: January 31st , 2024 
Re: County Funding of Low-Income Housing Projects 

1. The Question.

The Question has arisen as to if and how the County may provide funding for housing
to Low-Income and/or at-risk populations. 

There are three identified paths, which are: 

1. Through receipt and allocation of grant funding provided for said purpose by act of
Congress, or the State Legislature. Examples of federal funding allocated to
municipalities that may or shall be used for housing of low-income persons include
American Rescue Plan Act funding, and the entitlement grants of Cranston-
Gonzalez Home Funds, Community Development Block Grant, and HOPWA
(Housing of Persons with Aids);

2. Through a determination of public necessity and adoption of a Local Law
authorizing the spending;

3. Indirectly by funding aspects of a Project already authorized by existing Statute, or
Law, or Congressional or State Legislative Act.

The tests for whether or not we can fund certain things usually revolves around two 
questions, which are: 

1. Is the activity funding a recognized public purpose, and thus not an
unlawful gift in violation of the State Constitution; and

2. Has the County been granted the direct, or indirect authority to fund the
activity, through the funding source.

SUSPENSION

COMM. 3D-9 
Page 1 of 4



2 
 

2. Funding of Low-Income Housing is a Public Purpose in New York recognized by the 
State Constitution 

 
Pursuant to N.Y. Const. Art. XVIII, § 21 acquisition of land for, and funding of housing projects 

is a directly authorized public purpose, and pursuant to said provision the State Legislature, 
and certain public corporations defined to include cities, towns and villages, but not counties 
were authorized to expend their own funds to subsidize, or make loans to low income housing 
projects. Unfortunately, under the same provision granting the power to cities, towns and 
Villages, the power was not then provided to counties. 

 
 

3. Does the County have direct authority, or other means, to utilize its own capital or 
operating funds to make loans or grants to low income housing projects? 

 
By way of background, “a creature of the State * * * has no power other than that given 

it by the Legislature, either explicitly or by necessary implication”.  See Matter of B.T. Prods. v. 
Barr, 44 N.Y.2d 226, 236, 405 N.Y.S.2d 9, 376 N.E.2d 171, citing Matter of Pooler v. Public Serv. 
Commn., supra; see, e.g., Matter of Department of Personnel v. New York City Civ. Serv. Commn., 
79 N.Y.2d 806, 807, 580 N.Y.S.2d 173, 588 N.E.2d 71). In other words, we only have the power to 
spend our County dollars on uses authorized by the State Legislature. 

 

 
1 N.Y. Const. art. XVIII, § 2 provides “For and in aid of such purposes, notwithstanding any provision in any other 
article of this constitution, but subject to the limitations contained in this article, the legislature may: make or 
contract to make or authorize to be made or contracted capital or periodic subsidies by the state to any city, town, 
village, or public corporation, payable only with moneys appropriated therefor from the general fund of the state; 
authorize any city, town or village to make or contract to make such subsidies to any public corporation, payable 
only with moneys locally appropriated therefor from the general or other fund available for current expenses of 
such municipality; authorize the contracting of indebtedness for the purpose of providing moneys out of which it 
may make or contract to make or authorize to be made or contracted loans by the state to any city, town, village 
or public corporation; authorize any city, town or village to make or contract to make loans to any public 
corporation; authorize any city, town or village to guarantee the principal of and interest on, or only the interest 
on, indebtedness contracted by a public corporation; authorize and provide for loans by the state and authorize 
loans by any city, town or village to or in aid of corporations regulated by law as to rents, profits, dividends and 
disposition of their property or franchises and engaged in providing housing facilities or nursing home 
accommodations; authorize any city, town or village to make loans to the owners of existing multiple dwellings for 
the rehabilitation and improvement thereof for occupancy by persons of low income as defined by law; grant or 
authorize tax exemptions in whole or in part, except that no such exemption may be granted or authorized for a 
period of more than sixty years; authorize cooperation with and the acceptance of aid from the United States; 
grant the power of eminent domain to any city, town or village, to any public corporation and to any corporation 
regulated by law as to rents, profits, dividends and disposition of its property or franchises and engaged in 
providing housing facilities. 
As used in this article, the term “public corporation” shall mean any corporate governmental agency (except a 
county or municipal corporation) organized pursuant to law to accomplish any or all of the purposes specified in 
this article. (underlined emphasis added) 
 

SUSPENSION

COMM. 3D-9 
Page 2 of 4



3 
 

While N.Y. Const. Art. XVIII, § 2 authorized cities, towns and villages to use operating 
and capital funds for housing Projects it did not include counties within the grant of 
authority. 

 
In 1978 Suffolk County requested the State Attorney General for an opinion as to 

whether State Law authorized Suffolk County to engage or assist in the development or 
operation of low-income housing. The AG then went through an analysis of the State 
Constitution and Public Housing Law and answered that power was not granted to 
counties by the State Legislature2. 

 
In 1992, a broader more open-ended request for an opinion was made by 

Westchester, Dutchess, Tompkins, and Rockland counties.  The question was “whether 
and the extent to which a county may develop affordable housing”3? In the answer to 
the question, the AG ultimately responded that, since  Article XVIII does not prohibit 
county low-income housing programs authorized by other provisions of the 
Constitution, and since counties have home rule powers under NY Const. Art IX, 
counties may adopt a local law to grant a power not precluded by the State Legislature 
directly. The 1992 decision determined that  “The power to develop affordable housing, 
in our opinion, is within the broad delegation of “police power” to local governments 
contained in Article IX, section 2(c)(ii)(10) of the Constitution and implemented by 
section 10(1)(ii)(a)(12) of the Municipal Home Rule Law. …These provisions authorize 
local governments, including counties, to adopt local laws relating to the government, 
protection, order, conduct, safety, health and well-being of persons or property in the 
local government. The 1992 AG opinion determined “that the exclusion of counties from 
those political subdivisions described in Article XVIII was a deliberate decision by the 
framers at the 1938 Constitutional Convention. Counties may, however, provide low-
income housing under their home rule powers.” 

  
So, in 1992 the AG laid out the path for a County to engage in necessary low-income 
financing, and site acquisition to provide affordable housing; however, that path relies 
upon adoption of a Local Law determining the public necessity.  
 
A recent example of the making of a finding of public necessity and adopting a local law 
to make future expenditures on public housing is found in Local Law 2023-3 of Ulster 
County. 

  

 
2 1978 N.Y. Op. Atty. Gen. (Inf.) 162 (N.Y.A.G.), 1978 WL 27579 
 
3 1992 N.Y. Op. Atty. Gen. (Inf.) 1010 (N.Y.A.G.), 1992 WL 479071 
 

SUSPENSION

COMM. 3D-9 
Page 3 of 4

https://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000300&cite=NYCNART18S10&originatingDoc=I01e60181120c11db81afa8f5b00e6bb9&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000300&cite=NYCNART9S2&originatingDoc=I01e60181120c11db81afa8f5b00e6bb9&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000300&cite=NYMUS10&originatingDoc=I01e60181120c11db81afa8f5b00e6bb9&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.DocLink)


4 
 

4. The County’s Proposed Local Law 1 of 2024 
 

The County’s proposed Local Law 1-2024 follows the process set forth by the New York 
State Attorney General in the previously referenced 1992 opinion (92-4). 

 
The proposed Local Law does not supersede, or even conflict the New York State 

Constitution Article XVIII § 2 powers which in 1938 granted authorities to cities, towns and 
villages, but not counties. The 1938 provision did not preclude any local powers, rather it 
expressly granted a power to three types of municipalities where a need for the authority was 
seen 85 years ago.  As the State Attorney General noted in their 1992 decision, we can lawfully 
expand our own powers to include funding affordable housing pursuant to NY Municipal Home 
Rule (NY State Constitution Article IX 2 ( c )(ii)(10)).  The 1992 decision provided as follows: 

 
The power to develop affordable housing, … is within the broad delegation 
of “police power” to local governments contained in Article IX, section 
2(c)(ii)(10) of the Constitution and implemented by section 10(1)(ii)(a)(12) of 
the Municipal Home Rule Law. These provisions authorize local 
governments, including counties, to adopt local laws relating to the 
government, protection, order, conduct, safety, health and well-being of 
persons or property in the local government. 

 
 

With the adoption of the Local Law we are following the prescribed Home Rule process 
which allows us to identify our own needs, as they now exist, and then use our own power to 
legislate to create the authority to act to address our identified needs.   

 
 

5. The Conclusion 
 

In conclusion, counties after adoption of a Local Law can use operating or capital funds for 
low income housing. It is not an unlawful activity, or precluded by the State Constitution, and 
is authorized by the Home Rule provisions of the New York State Constitution. 

 
 
 
 

SUSPENSION

COMM. 3D-9 
Page 4 of 4

https://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000300&cite=NYCNART9S2&originatingDoc=I01e60181120c11db81afa8f5b00e6bb9&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000300&cite=NYCNART9S2&originatingDoc=I01e60181120c11db81afa8f5b00e6bb9&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000300&cite=NYMUS10&originatingDoc=I01e60181120c11db81afa8f5b00e6bb9&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000300&cite=NYMUS10&originatingDoc=I01e60181120c11db81afa8f5b00e6bb9&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.DocLink)


  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 3E-15  GILMOUR  Letter of Absence for Session No. 2  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3E-15



ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
== HON. JOHN J. GILMOUR 

9TH DISTRICT LEGISLATOR 

□ 92 Franklin St., 4th Fl.
Buffalo, NY 14202
716/858-7500
FAX: 716/858-8895

January 31, 2024 

Olivia M. Owens, Clerk 
Erie County Legislature 
92 Franklin Street 
Buffalo, NY 14202 

Dear Clerk Owens, 

This letter is to explain my absence from the January 25, 2024 Legislature Session #1. I was 
previously scheduled to be out of town and as a result  I was unable to attend the rescheduled 
meeting.  

Please enter the aforementioned into the Legislature’s official record. 

Sincerely, 

Regards, 

SUSPENSION

COMM. 3E-15 
Page 1 of 1



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 3E-16  BASKIN  Placeholder - Letter on Affordable Housing  



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 3E-17  SHERIFF  Funding for Helicopter Deposit  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3E-17



SUSPENSION

COMM. 3E-17 
Page 1 of 4



SUSPENSION

COMM. 3E-17 
Page 2 of 4



SUSPENSION

COMM. 3E-17 
Page 3 of 4



SUSPENSION

COMM. 3E-17 
Page 4 of 4



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 3E-1  CHAIR BASKIN  Request of Postponement for Session No. 2  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3E-1



COMM. 3E-1 
Page 1 of 1



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 3E-2  LEGISLATURE CLERK  Notice of Postponement - Session No. 2  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3E-2



COMM. 3E-2 
Page 1 of 1



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 3E-3  TODARO  School District Reimbursement  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3E-3



COMM. 3E-3 
Page 1 of 2



COMM. 3E-3 
Page 2 of 2



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 3E-4  TODARO  School District Reimbursement  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3E-4



COMM. 3E-4 
Page 1 of 2



COMM. 3E-4 
Page 2 of 2



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 3E-5  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  EC - On-Call Special Inspections & Tests -
Additional Funding  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3E-5



COMM. 3E-5 
Page 1 of 7



COMM. 3E-5 
Page 2 of 7



COMM. 3E-5 
Page 3 of 7



COMM. 3E-5 
Page 4 of 7



COMM. 3E-5 
Page 5 of 7



COMM. 3E-5 
Page 6 of 7



COMM. 3E-5 
Page 7 of 7



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 3E-6  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Bridge NY Project Agreements - 4 Bridge
Replacement Projects  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3E-6



COMM. 3E-6 
Page 1 of 8



COMM. 3E-6 
Page 2 of 8



COMM. 3E-6 
Page 3 of 8



COMM. 3E-6 
Page 4 of 8



COMM. 3E-6 
Page 5 of 8



COMM. 3E-6 
Page 6 of 8



COMM. 3E-6 
Page 7 of 8



COMM. 3E-6 
Page 8 of 8



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 3E-7  COMPTROLLER  Jail Management 25 Year Pension Retroactive
Payment to NYS Pension System  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3E-7



COMM. 3E-7 
Page 1 of 1



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 3E-8  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Appointments to the Mental Hygiene
Community Services Board  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3E-8



COMM. 3E-8 
Page 1 of 1



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 3E-9  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Appointments to the Senior Services Advisory
Board  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3E-9



COMM. 3E-9 
Page 1 of 2



COMM. 3E-9 
Page 2 of 2



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 3E-10  SHERIFF  Buffalo Fatherhood Initiative Contract
Amendment  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3E-10



COMM. 3E-10 
Page 1 of 3



COMM. 3E-10 
Page 2 of 3



COMM. 3E-10 
Page 3 of 3



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 3E-11  SHERIFF  Renewal of Project Blue Contract  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3E-11



COMM. 3E-11 
Page 1 of 3



COMM. 3E-11 
Page 2 of 3



COMM. 3E-11 
Page 3 of 3



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 3E-12  SHERIFF  Quote for Cell Repairs at the EC Holding
Center  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3E-12



COMM. 3E-12 
Page 1 of 3



COMM. 3E-12 
Page 2 of 3



COMM. 3E-12 
Page 3 of 3



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 3E-13  MILLS  Letter of Absence  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3E-13



COMM. 3E-13 
Page 1 of 1



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 3D-1  DIRECTOR OF BUDGET
& MANAGEMENT  Budget Monitoring Report for Period Ending

November 2023  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3D-1



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 1 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 2 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 3 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 4 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 5 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 6 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 7 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 8 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 9 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 10 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 11 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 12 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 13 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 14 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 15 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 16 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 17 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 18 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 19 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 20 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 21 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 22 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 23 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 24 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 25 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 26 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 27 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 28 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 29 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 30 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 31 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 32 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 33 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 34 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 35 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 36 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 37 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 38 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 39 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 40 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 41 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 42 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 43 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 44 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 45 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 46 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 47 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 48 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 49 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 50 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 51 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 52 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 53 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 54 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 55 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 56 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 57 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 58 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 59 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 60 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 61 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 62 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 63 of 64



COMM. 3D-1 
Page 64 of 64



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 3D-2  DIRECTOR OF BUDGET
& MANAGEMENT  Capital Projects Update  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3D-2



COMM. 3D-2 
Page 1 of 3



COMM. 3D-2 
Page 2 of 3



COMM. 3D-2 
Page 3 of 3



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 3D-3  COUNTY ATTORNEY  Local State of Emergency Declaration, January
12, 2024  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3D-3



COMM. 3D-3 
Page 1 of 2



COMM. 3D-3 
Page 2 of 2



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 3D-4  COMMISSIONER OF
SOCIAL SERVICES  Compliance Report - Comm. 12E-34  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3D-4



COMM. 3D-4 
Page 1 of 1



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 3D-5  COMMISSIONER OF
PUBLIC WORKS  2023 GBNRTC Road Score Book  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3D-5



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 1 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 2 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 3 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 4 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 5 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 6 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 7 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 8 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 9 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 10 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 11 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 12 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 13 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 14 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 15 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 16 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 17 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 18 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 19 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 20 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 21 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 22 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 23 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 24 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 25 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 26 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 27 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 28 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 29 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 30 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 31 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 32 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 33 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 34 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 35 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 36 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 37 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 38 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 39 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 40 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 41 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 42 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 43 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 44 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 45 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 46 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 47 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 48 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 49 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 50 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 51 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 52 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 53 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 54 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 55 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 56 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 57 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 58 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 59 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 60 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 61 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 62 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 63 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 64 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 65 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 66 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 67 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 68 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 69 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 70 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 71 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 72 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 73 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 74 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 75 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 76 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 77 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 78 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 79 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 80 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 81 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 82 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 83 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 84 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 85 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 86 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 87 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 88 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 89 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 90 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 91 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 92 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 93 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 94 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 95 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 96 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 97 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 98 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 99 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 100 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 101 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 102 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 103 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 104 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 105 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 106 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 107 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 108 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 109 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 110 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 111 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 112 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 113 of 114



COMM. 3D-5 
Page 114 of 114



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 3D-6  BOARD OF ELECTIONS
COMMISSIONERS  Acceptance of Grant Award - Absentee Ballot

Pre-Paid Postage  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3D-6



COMM. 3D-6 
Page 1 of 4



COMM. 3D-6 
Page 2 of 4



COMM. 3D-6 
Page 3 of 4



COMM. 3D-6 
Page 4 of 4



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 3M-1  ASSIGNED COUNSEL
PROGRAM  Quarterly Report - 4th Quarter of 2023  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3M-1



COMM. 3M-1 
Page 1 of 4



COMM. 3M-1 
Page 2 of 4



COMM. 3M-1 
Page 3 of 4



COMM. 3M-1 
Page 4 of 4



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 3M-2  ASSIGNED COUNSEL
PROGRAM  Financial Report & Meeting Minutes  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3M-2



COMM. 3M-2 
Page 1 of 18



COMM. 3M-2 
Page 2 of 18



COMM. 3M-2 
Page 3 of 18



COMM. 3M-2 
Page 4 of 18



COMM. 3M-2 
Page 5 of 18



COMM. 3M-2 
Page 6 of 18



COMM. 3M-2 
Page 7 of 18



COMM. 3M-2 
Page 8 of 18



COMM. 3M-2 
Page 9 of 18



COMM. 3M-2 
Page 10 of 18



COMM. 3M-2 
Page 11 of 18



COMM. 3M-2 
Page 12 of 18



COMM. 3M-2 
Page 13 of 18



COMM. 3M-2 
Page 14 of 18



COMM. 3M-2 
Page 15 of 18



COMM. 3M-2 
Page 16 of 18



COMM. 3M-2 
Page 17 of 18



COMM. 3M-2 
Page 18 of 18



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 3M-3  APPOINTEE  Appointment to the ECCSAB  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3M-3



COMM. 3M-3 
Page 1 of 1



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/01/2024  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 3M-4  
COMMISSIONER OF
AGRICULTURE &
MARKETS

 Erie County Southwestern Agricultural District
No. 8 Districting Plan Approval  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
24COMM. 3M-4



COMM. 3M-4 
Page 1 of 1


	Agenda
	AI 1546 In Remembrance of Stephanie Barber Geter
	       ATT_Stephanie Barber Geter
	AI 1547 In Remembrance of Mary J. Snell-Davis
	       ATT_Mary J. Snell-Davis
	AI 1548 Honoring and Recognizing National Boy Scout Day
	       ATT_National Boy Scout Day
	AI 1549 Honoring and Celebrating African American History Month
	       ATT_African American History Month
	AI 1550 Honoring National Freedom Day
	       ATT_National Freedom Day
	AI 1551 Recognizing Saints Peter and Paul School During Catholic Schools Week in Erie County
	       ATT_Saints Peter and Paul School 
	AI 1552 Recognizing St. Francis High School During Catholic Schools Week in Erie County
	       ATT_St. Francis High School
	AI 1553 Celebrating Elizabeth (Betty) Birch on Her 100th Birthday
	       ATT_Elizabeth (Betty) Birch
	AI 1554 Recognizing St. Maryâ€™s High School During Catholic Schools Week in Erie County
	       ATT_St. Mary_s High School 
	AI 1555 Recognizing St. John the Baptist School During Catholic Schools Week in Erie County
	       ATT_St. John the Baptist School 
	AI 1556 Recognizing Our Lady of the Blessed Sacrament School During Catholic Schools Week in Erie County
	       ATT_Our Lady of the Blessed Sacrament
	AI 1557 Recognizing Boy Scout Troops in Erie County During Boy Scouts Anniversary Week
	       ATT_Boy Scout Troops 
	AI 1558 Recognizing Chrusciki Bakery on Paczki Day
	       ATT_Chrusciki Bakery
	AI 1559 Honoring and Congratulating Detective Terrance Walsh on His Retirement
	       ATT_Detective Terrance Walsh
	AI 1560 Recognizing Kim Cappozzolo and Catwalk Consignment Boutique During National Secondhand Wardrobe Week
	       ATT_Catwalk Consignment Boutique 
	AI 1561 Recognizing Dana Zuber and Platoâ€™s Closet During National Secondhand Wardrobe Week
	       ATT_Plato_s Closet 
	AI 1562 Recognizing St. Vincent de Paul Council No. 17883 for 2 Years of Service to the Western New York Community
	       ATT_St. Vincent de Paul Council No. 17883
	AI 1563 Recognizing January 2024 as â€œNational Learn A Snow Sport Monthâ€�
	       ATT_National Learn A Snow Sport Month
	AI 1564 Recognizing Spectrum Health and Human Services as the West Seneca Chamber of Commerce 2024 Community Service Organization of the Year
	       ATT_Spectrum Health and Human Services 
	AI 1565 Recognizing Jennifer McAndrew as the West Seneca Chamber of Commerce 2024 Citizen of the Year
	       ATT_Jennifer McAndrew
	AI 1566 Recognizing the Western New York Federal Credit Union as the West Seneca Chamber of Commerce 2024 Chamber Member of the Year
	       ATT_Western New York Federal Credit Union
	AI 1567 Recognizing Andrew Frelock as the West Seneca Chamber of Commerce 2024 Gerald Hathaway Young Entrepreneur of the Year
	       ATT_Andrew Frelock
	AI 1568 Recognizing Steppinâ€™ Out Dance Academy as the West Seneca Chamber of Commerce 2024 Business of the Year
	       ATT_ Steppin_ Out Dance Academy 
	AI 1569 Recognizing Rosalia Carraba as West Seneca Chamber of Commerce 2024 Educator of the Year
	       ATT_Rosalia Carraba
	AI 1570 Recognizing Alan J. Kaplewicz for 40 Years of Service to the Blossom Volunteer Fire Company
	       ATT_Alan J. Kaplewicz
	AI 1571 Recognizing Paul Derkovitz for 40 Years of Service to the Blossom Volunteer Fire Company
	       ATT_Paul Derkovitz
	AI 1470 Funding of Affordable Housing Opportunities in Erie County
	       ATT_LL INTRO. 1-1 (2024)
	AI 1573 Report No. 2
	       ATT_Report No. 2
	AI 1574 Report No. 2
	       ATT_Report No. 2
	AI 1575 Report No. 2
	       ATT_Report No. 2
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT


	AI 1576 Report No. 2
	       ATT_Report No. 2
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

	AI 1577 Report No. 1
	       ATT_Report No. 1
	AI 1578 Report No. 1
	       ATT_Report No. 1
	AI 1579 Report No. 1
	       ATT_Report No. 1
	AI 1532 Rescinding Changes to the Management, Administration & Regulation of Golf Leagues
	       ATT_24INTRO. 3-1
	AI 1582 Affordable Multi-Family Rental Housing Projects Requesting EC ARPA Funding
	       ATT_24COMM. 3D-7
	AI 1583 Regulation of County Golf Courses
	       ATT_24COMM. 3D-8
	AI 1584 Lease for Legislative Office Space
	       ATT_24COMM. 3E-14
	AI 1585 County Funding of Low-Income Housing Projects
	       ATT_24COMM. 3D-9
	AI 1586 Letter of Absence for Session No. 2
	       ATT_24COMM. 3E-15
	AI 1587 Placeholder - Letter on Affordable Housing
	AI 1588 Funding for Helicopter Deposit
	       ATT_24COMM. 3E-17
	AI 1533 Request of Postponement for Session No. 2
	       ATT_24COMM. 3E-1
	AI 1534 Notice of Postponement - Session No. 2
	       ATT_24COMM. 3E-2
	AI 1535 School District Reimbursement
	       ATT_24COMM. 3E-3
	AI 1536 School District Reimbursement
	       ATT_24COMM. 3E-4
	AI 1537 EC - On-Call Special Inspections & Tests - Additional Funding
	       ATT_24COMM. 3E-5
	AI 1538 Bridge NY Project Agreements - 4 Bridge Replacement Projects
	       ATT_24COMM. 3E-6
	AI 1539 Jail Management 25 Year Pension Retroactive Payment to NYS Pension System
	       ATT_24COMM. 3E-7
	AI 1540 Appointments to the Mental Hygiene Community Services Board
	       ATT_24COMM. 3E-8
	AI 1541 Appointments to the Senior Services Advisory Board
	       ATT_24COMM. 3E-9
	AI 1542 Buffalo Fatherhood Initiative Contract Amendment
	       ATT_24COMM. 3E-10
	AI 1543 Renewal of Project Blue Contract
	       ATT_24COMM. 3E-11
	AI 1544 Quote for Cell Repairs at the EC Holding Center
	       ATT_24COMM. 3E-12
	AI 1545 Letter of Absence
	       ATT_24COMM. 3E-13
	AI 1523 Budget Monitoring Report for Period Ending November 2023
	       ATT_24COMM. 3D-1
	AI 1524 Capital Projects Update
	       ATT_24COMM. 3D-2
	AI 1525 Local State of Emergency Declaration, January 12, 2024
	       ATT_24COMM. 3D-3
	AI 1526 Compliance Report - Comm. 12E-34
	       ATT_24COMM. 3D-4
	AI 1527 2023 GBNRTC Road Score Book
	       ATT_24COMM. 3D-5
	AI 1528 Acceptance of Grant Award - Absentee Ballot Pre-Paid Postage
	       ATT_24COMM. 3D-6
	AI 1529 Quarterly Report - 4th Quarter of 2023
	       ATT_24COMM. 3M-1
	AI 1530 Financial Report & Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_24COMM. 3M-2
	AI 1531 Appointment to the ECCSAB
	       ATT_24COMM. 3M-3
	AI 1572 Erie County Southwestern Agricultural District No. 8 Districting Plan Approval
	       ATT_24COMM. 3M-4

